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Mayor Thomas S. Richards 
Members of the City Council 
City of Rochester 
30 Church Street, Room 307-A 
Rochester, NY 14614 
 
Report Number: S4-09-116-F 
 
Dear Mayor Richards and Members of the City Council: 
 
One of the Office of the State Comptroller’s primary objectives is to identify areas where local 
government officials can improve their operations and provide guidance and services that will 
assist them in making those improvements. Further objectives are to develop and promote short-
term and long-term strategies to enable and encourage City officials to reduce costs, improve 
service delivery, and account for and protect the City’s assets. 
 
In accordance with these objectives, we conducted a review of the codes of ethics and procedures 
related to their implementation at 31 municipalities selected throughout New York State. The 
objective of our audit was to examine local governments’ ethics oversight procedures to 
determine if the local governments adopted and distributed codes of ethics in compliance with 
General Municipal Law (GML) and if the governing boards developed adequate procedures to 
monitor compliance with the codes of ethics and related statutory requirements.1 We included the 
City of Rochester (City) in this audit. As a result of our audit, we issued a report letter, dated 
March 18, 2010, identifying certain conditions and opportunities for City management’s review 
and consideration. 
 
To further our policy of providing assistance to local governments, we revisited the City on June 
27, 2011, and made additional follow up phone calls on September 12, 2012, to review the City’s 
progress in implementing our recommendations. Our follow-up review was limited to interviews 
with City personnel and inspection of certain documents related to the issues identified in our 
report. Based on our limited procedures, it appears that the City has made some improvements. 
Of the three audit recommendations, one recommendation was fully implemented, one 
recommendation was partially implemented, and one recommendation was not implemented. We 
have also identified an additional matter for City management’s review and consideration. 
 

                                                 
1 General Municipal Law (GML) Article 18, Sections 800 through 813: Conflicts of Interest of Municipal Officers 
and Employees 

 

 



We discussed our findings and recommendations with City officials and considered their 
comments in preparing this report. 
 
Recommendation 1 – Code of Ethics Distribution 
 
City officials should ensure that the Code of Ethics and any updates to the Code of Ethics are 
distributed to all employees and officials. 
 
Status of Corrective Action: Fully Implemented 
 
Observations/Findings: The Office of Public Integrity (OPI) worked with the Information 
Technology (IT) Office to update the Employee Portal2 with new policies and policy revisions. 
When employees sign into the Employee Portal, they must sign off on any new policies and 
policy revisions as read. All new employees are required to go through training that includes a 
section on ethics. All new supervisors go through leadership training that has a section on fraud 
that addresses ethics. Current employees are also allowed to voluntarily sign up to attend 
these trainings. We also performed a phone survey of five randomly selected City employees and 
found that all five were aware of and had received training that addressed the City’s Code of 
Ethics. However, only two of the five employees recalled having to sign off on new policies or 
policy revisions as read when signing in to the Employee Portal. 
 
Recommendation 2 – Code of Ethics Revisions 
 
The Board should review the City’s Code of Ethics and consider revising it to cover more than 
the minimum requirements of GML. For example, the Board could consider including provisions 
that relate to hiring and supervising relatives. 
 
Status of Corrective Action: Not Implemented 
 
Observations/Findings: In the City’s written response to the 2010 audit report and its corrective 
action plan, the Director of the OPI stated that his office would confer with relevant parties for 
input and guidance in making revisions to the City’s Code of Ethics within the next fiscal year. 
However, no revisions to the City’s Code of Ethics have been made. 
 
Recommendation 3 – Whistleblower Policy Distribution 
 
City officials should ensure that officers and employees are made aware of whistleblower 
protections that exist in Law. 
 
Status of Corrective Action: Partially Implemented 
 
Observations/Findings: The OPI, with the assistance of the IT Office, updated the Employee 
Portal with the City’s whistleblower policy and also made it accessible in other locations. The 
ethics training mentioned previously includes a section on the whistleblower policy. Our review 

                                                 
2 The Employee Portal is the City’s web-based intranet used to provide City employees with email, news, and 
updates, including access to training, policies, and procedures. 
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of the OPI website on June 28, 2011, and again on September 12, 2012, found that the 
whistleblower policy is on the OPI home page.  Our phone survey of five randomly selected City 
employees found that only two of the five employees were aware of and had received training on 
the City’s whistleblower policy. The City needs to implement a more effective method to ensure 
officials and employees are made aware of the whistleblower protections. 
 
Additional Concern from Report Letter – Board of Ethics 
 
Our 2010 report noted: 

 
 “the City of Rochester has established a Board of Ethics but the Board of Ethics 
has not met in over three years due to the creation of the Office of Public 
Integrity, which is currently handling all ethics violations. We found that the 
Office of Public Integrity effectively reviewed financial disclosure forms that 
certain City employees are required to submit. The Office of Public Integrity 
verified that the forms were complete and had procedures for examining the 
information contained on the forms to prevent the occurrence of transactions that 
would be conflicts of interest.” 

 
We have determined that our 2010 report did not express that the financial disclosure review 
responsibilities were not being administered properly. GML requires the review to be done by 
the Board of Ethics (Board), whose members are appointed by the City Council. In addition, the 
City Charter requires disclosures to be administered by the Board. However, this function has 
been performed by the OPI, whose Director is appointed by the Mayor. As a result, the review by 
the OPI is not an independent review, as anticipated by GML.   
 
According to City officials, the Board has been reestablished and had their first meeting on 
February 15, 2012. As of September 12, 2012, no further meetings have been held. There is no 
indication that the Board has assumed its statutory role of reviewing financial disclosure 
statements. The OPI continues to review financial disclosure forms for completeness and 
examines submitted information for potential conflicts of interest. According to the Director of 
OPI, the Board’s role will be to meet, review, and issue opinions on concerns that are brought to 
their attention either by employees or through concerns brought directly to his attention.3  
 
Recommendation 
 

1. The Board should review financial disclosure forms for completeness and examine 
information contained on the forms to prevent the occurrence of transactions involving 
conflicts of interest. 

 
During our review, we discussed the basis for our recommendation and the operational 
considerations relating to this issue. We encourage you to continue with your efforts to 
implement our recommended improvements in your fiscal management.   
 

                                                 
3 The Director of OPI also serves as Secretary of the Board of Ethics. 
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I trust that our follow-up review was of assistance to you.  If you have any further questions, 
please contact Edward Grant, Chief Examiner of our Rochester Regional Office, at (585) 454-
2460. 
 
      Sincerely,  

 
      Andrew S. SanFilippo     
      Executive Deputy Comptroller 
      Office of State and Local Government   
      Accountability 
 
 
cc:  Dale Pascoe 
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APPENDIX A 
 

RESPONSE FROM LOCAL OFFICIALS 
 
 
The City officials’ response to this audit can be found on the following pages. 
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